MINUTES
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
FEBRUARY 4, 2008

Mayor Rothschild called the special meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to order at 6:00 p.m.

Roll Call: Present: Mr. Henry Zucker
Mrs. Susie Rivers
Mayor Beryl E. Rothschild
Mr. Thomas Cozzens
Mr. Ari Jaffe

Also Present: Clerk of Council Nancy E. English
Building Commissioner William Nadeau
Law Director Kenneth J. Fisher
Councilman Peter Bernardo
Councilman Steven D. Bullock
Chief of Police Gary Stehlik
Fire Chief John Pitchler
Service Director Christopher Vild
Acting Engineer Nick Fini
Community Coordinator Walter Stinson
Finance Director Arman R. Ochoa

Agenda Items:

ITEM 1. Applicant: Waterway Gas & Wash Company, 727 Goddard Ave., Chesterfield,
MO, for: 1) The issuance of a Special Permit renewable annually pursuant to
Section 1262.02(b)(7) of the Codified Ordinances for a full service car wash,
gasoline and convenience store facility with administrative office and training
center/conference room on the second floor at 2216 Warrensville Center Road;
2) To determine hours of operation if the Special Permit is granted, BZA 08-13

Mayor Rothschild stated that since the Board of Zoning Appeals normally meets in the morning, this
special evening meeting of the Board was scheduled to afford the residents the opportunity to attend
the meeting on the Waterway application.

Law Director Kenneth J. Fisher reported that under 1262.02 (b)(7) of the Code, “Gasoline Service
Stations” are a permitted use in a U-7 Local Retail District only upon a Special Permit approved by
the Board of Zoning Appeals. He added in order to grant the Special Permit, the Board must make
a finding that “...the use in the particular area is not likely to be a hazard to the existing and
anticipated vehicle and pedestrian traffic movement in the area; and is not likely to be seriously
harmful to a residential area.” Mr. Fisher stated that Waterway Gas & Wash Company has the
burden of establishing that the Special Permit should be granted and must address all issues.

Mr. Fisher stated that the second item on the Board’s agenda are hours of operation for the gasoline
service station, retail store, and car wash which will only be voted upon if the Special Permit is
granted. He noted that there is no specific code provision regulating hours of operation in a Retail
District.

Mr. Fisher also reported that the decision of the Board of Zoning Appeals is subject to appeal to City
Council pursuant to 1244.08(A) of the Codified Ordinances.

Mayor Rothschild reviewed the procedural aspects of the meeting. First, Waterway will make its
presentation, then staff comments, next Board comments or questions, followed by comments by the
public. Mayor Rothschild stated that sixty-two (62) emails were received regarding the project. She
asked that those people who did not send in emails be the individuals who speak publicly.

Mr. Michael P. Goldman, vice president, site development and general counsel, was present along with
Mr. Dubinsky, chairman and CEO, Waterway Gas & Wash Company. Mr. Goldman stated that
Waterway is a thirty-seven (37) year old company with seventeen (17) sites in three (3) states. He
noted that Waterway has strived to be a good neighbor in its current markets of St. Louis, Kansas City
and Denver.

Mr. Goldman stated that Waterway is requesting a Special Permit under 1262.02 of the Codified
Ordinances. He stated that Waterway is no longer asking for the 10 ft. variance on the rear yard
setback as the site plan had been modified to allow a 20ft. rear yard setback as required by the Code.



BZA Minutes 02/04/2008 Page 2

Councilwoman Frankie Goldberg interrupted the presentation to inform Mayor Rothschild that there
were approximately twenty-five (25) people downstairs that should be allowed to attend the meeting.
Ms. Goldberg stated the meeting could be moved to Green Road Synagogue, which would
accommodate the overflow capacity. Law Director Kenneth J. Fisher advised that the meeting location
could not be changed without compliance to public notice requirements. Ms. Goldberg then suggested
that the date of the meeting be changed to a date and place where space considerations would not be
an issue. Mr. Fisher stated that space is limited to 104 individuals, but since the meeting had begun
he asked for sentiments from the Board members.

Mr. Jaffe stated that he was reluctant to hold a meeting without those who want to be part of the
process, whether to speak or just to listen, and a facility had not been made available to them. Mr.
Fisher stated that it would have been more appropriate to raise the objection before the meeting started.

Mayor Rothschild suggested that since another presentation will be given at the Council meeting which
was scheduled to begin at 7:30 p.m. following this Board of Zoning Appeals meeting, perhaps the
people who heard the first presentation would give up their seats to the people who were not able to
hear the first presentation.

Mr. Cozzens stated that he is not comfortable with some resident not being included in the proceedings
and indicated that he would be willing to defer the meeting due to the inadequacy of the facilities.

Mrs. Rivers stated that she would be willing to attend another meeting because she wants all the
citizens who are interested in the project to be able to attend the meeting.

Fire Chief John Pitchler verified that twenty-five (25) people were outside and there was indication
that more were coming. Chief Pitchler stated that he could not override the fire regulations to let the
individuals in the meeting.

MOTION BY MR.JAFFE, SECONDED BY MR. COZZENS to adjourn this meeting to a time
and place to be determined that is large enough to accommodate all interested parties as soon
as possible.

Mr. Fisher stated that if the meeting is rescheduled it should be a location within the city. Mr.
Bernardo offered John Carroll University.

Mr. Goldman stated that Waterway is willing to accommodate the City and its citizens because they
want to be good neighbors. He added that they would work cooperatively to get an appropriate date.

Mr. Fisher stated that the site plan approval for Waterway, which was before the City Council at its
7:30 p.m. meeting, will be tabled as well. He explained that the Council cannot vote on the site plan
recommendation from the January 14, 2008 Planning Commission meeting until the determination is
made one way or another by the Board of Zoning Appeals as to whether the use is permitted by Special
Permit.

Mrs. Rivers inquired if Waterway met with the neighbors regarding its project. Mr. Goldman stated
that a meeting was held with the neighbors on January 29, 2008 at the University Heights Public
Library. He noted that 150 notices were hand-delivered in the residential district, council members
were e-mailed and a notice issued to the Sun Press. Mr. Goldman noted that approximately 15 people
came to the meeting.

Mr. Zucker stated that it would be burdensome to change the meeting since everyone was present. He
added that numerous emails have been received expressing the sentiment of the community. Mr.
Cozzens stated that the residents have a right to be heard. Mr. Fisher also stated that public has a right
to be present.

Roll call on the motion to adjourn, all voted “aye,” except Mr. Zucker, who voted “no.”

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned to a date, time and place to be
determined.

Beryl E. Rothschild, Mayor

Nancy E. English, MMC



